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From: Racelle Escolar
Sent: Wednesday, December 17, 2025 1:00 PM
To: 'Amanda McGowan'
Cc: Sarah Stockham; Tricia Gomes; Adrian G Zambrano
Subject: RE: TSMC Response- Discharge & Air Pollution Data- Northpark 

Importance: High

Hi Amanda, 

Sorry for the delay. The below information responds to the 16 questions in your email below. Staff provided the 
answers under the categories below. 

Wastewater & PFAS Monitoring 
1. Will the City require PFAS monitoring for industrial users discharging to the POTW, consistent with EPA’s

December 2022 guidance encouraging pretreatment authorities to use existing Clean Water Act authority
to require this testing?

2. If not, what is the rationale for declining to require PFAS monitoring when EPA guidance permits and
recommends it?

3. Will the City require the facility to conduct influent, effluent, and sludge testing to identify PFAS or PFAS
precursors entering the wastewater system?

4. If PFAS are detected, what mechanisms or controls are in place to prevent contaminated wastewater or
biosolids from entering the environment?

Response:  The Memorandum referenced “provides guidance to states…for addressing PFAS discharges when 
they are authorized to administer the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permitting 
program and/or pretreatment program and states that EPA will work with the state-authorized permitting 
authorities to restrict the discharge of PFAS at their sources.” The City is not aware of the EPA working with the 
state of Arizona to restrict or identify PFAS in wastewater discharges. Until the state of Arizona implements legal 
requirements, the City cannot require monitoring for industrial users. ADEQ’s regulatory authority is also limited 
by statute to be no more stringent than the corresponding federal law.   
The State of Arizona issued an AZPDES permit to the City in 2023, and the EPA issued a NPDES permit to the City in 
2024, neither permit authorizes PFAS monitoring for industrial discharges. There are no wastewater limits 
established by the State or EPA for PFAS. As a result, the City does not have authority to require PFAS monitoring 
for industrial dischargers.  
 The City only has authority to require TSMC to monitor their industrial discharges into the City’s wastewater 
system for specific local limits and federal mandated parameters. Should rules or regulations be enacted 
addressing PFA’s, the City would enforce as applicable.  The City does and will continue to work with the EPA and 
State regarding the safety of the public and the environment and TSMC will be required to comply with current and 
future requirements regarding discharge.  The City test water leaving wastewater treatment plants and the water 
meets all federal requirements for safe water discharge into aquifers and river corridors.   

Chemical Inventory & Spill/Accident Risk 
5. Has the City conducted (or will it require) a hazard analysis for the large volumes of hydrofluoric acid, nitric

acid, sulfuric acid, glycol ethers, diesel, and other hazardous chemicals currently stored onsite and
anticipated with expansion?

Response: Facilities that store, use, handle, or manufacture hazardous materials are regulated by the Phoenix 
Fire Code and applicable national standards. The quantities and types of chemicals on site determine the 
requirements for both operational and construction permits. When tanks, process piping, machinery, and 
equipment utilizing these materials are anticipated or planned, Fire Prevention conducts permitting and plan 
review to ensure: 
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•Chemical quantities do not exceed the maximum allowable amounts established by the Fire Code. 
•Equipment, piping, and storage methods are compatible with the specific materials being conveyed or stored. 
•Required safety features, such as gas detection, ventilation, fire detection, and fire suppression, are 
appropriately designed and installed. Part of the Phoenix Fire Code requirements for fire safety systems is 
continuous monitoring that initiates the deployment of emergency response resources upon activation. 
•Emergency procedures and safeguards are in place, including appropriate signage, access, and emergency 
shutdown capabilities. 
•Coordination occurs with the Fire Department’s operational response teams to ensure they have full awareness 
of facility layout, chemical locations, and any special response considerations. 
 
Regarding the quantities of material on site, the Fire Code establishes both indoor and outdoor maximum 
allowable quantities based on each chemical’s hazard characteristics. Storage configuration, utilization, 
secondary containment, vessel size, and vessel design are all regulated by these standards and verified through 
the permitting and inspection processes. 
Additionally, the TSMC facility, including all future phases and additions, is part of the Hazardous Materials Annual 
Assessment Program. Fire inspectors will remain engaged not only during construction but also as the buildings, 
equipment, vessels, and processes continue to become operational. Their ongoing role is to verify that life-safety 
systems, material quantities, emergency procedures, and hazardous material handling continue to comply with 
the Phoenix Fire Code, while maintaining ongoing coordination with Fire Operations to support safe and effective 
emergency response. 
Large volumes of chemicals (typically more than 10,000 pounds, but may be depending upon the chemicals—see 
the EPA List of Lists ( consolidated-list-of-lists-updated-april-2025.pdf) must be disclosed through Tier II reporting 
based on the Emergency Planning and Community Right to Know Act (EPCRA) (https://www.epa.gov/epcra) to 
ADEQ. Some chemicals that exceed 1,320 gallons are subject to Spill Prevention Control and Countermeasure 
(SPCC:  https://www.epa.gov/oil-spills-prevention-and-preparedness-regulations) planning requirements. 
Underground tanks storing diesel would be regulated with the Underground Storage Tanks (UST) division at ADEQ 
(https://azdeq.gov/USTProgram) which has detailed regulations regarding spill protection and maintenance, in 
addition to which ADEQ conducts regular inspections at UST sites. 
Overall, the regulation and storage of chemicals is regulated by the EPA and ADEQ, except as it relates to the Fire 
Department as discussed above.  TSMC is required to comply with all applicable federal and state laws regarding 
the use of chemicals.   

6. What release modeling radius is used for chemicals such as hydrofluoric acid, and will those models be 
made public? The Center for Environmental Oversight has already stated in writing that such analysis is 
appropriate for a project of this scale. Hydrofluoric acid (HF) is one of the most dangerous industrial 
chemicals in use today. A single semiconductor fab can store multiple 7,000–8,000-gallon tanks of HF and 
related chemicals- far more than an average industrial facility. 

Response: When responding to chemical releases, the Phoenix Fire Department uses Palmtop Emergency Action 
for Chemicals (PEAC) software for release modeling. All documentation produced using this software during 
emergency response becomes a department record.  
Tier II reports and any associated Facility Emergency Response Plans can be obtained via a public records request 
through ADEQ (https://azdeq.gov/records).  

7. Will expansion necessitate updated emergency response plans, and will those plans be coordinated with 
local fire agencies and accessible to residents? 

Response: Any change to established emergency procedures or materials/systems could trigger the need for 
reevaluation and updating as required by the Fire Code’s permitting and inspection requirements.   
Any chemicals stored in quantities subject to Tier II reporting must updated annually, and ADEQ does coordinate 
the Tier II system with local fire agencies. Tier II reports and any associated Facility Emergency Response Plans 
can be obtained via a public records request through ADEQ (https://azdeq.gov/records). 
 
Air Quality & Emissions 

8. Will the City require cumulative air-quality modeling for the expanded operations, given the number of 
thermal oxidizers, diesel generators, cooling towers, and VOC-containing storage tanks? 
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9. How will the City ensure that increased VOCs, NOx, SO₂, particulate matter, and other emissions do not 
negatively impact nearby neighborhoods- particularly in a region already facing significant air-quality 
challenges? 

10. What perimeter or ambient monitoring (continuous or periodic) will be required to ensure compliance and 
detect offsite impacts? 

These questions should be referred to the Maricopa County Air Quality Division who is local regulator for air 
quality. Air Quality | Maricopa County, AZ. 
 
Water Supply & Usage 

11. A city employee indicated an estimated discharge of approximately 4 million gallons per day from existing 
operations. What is the projected increase in water usage and wastewater discharge associated with the 
expansion?  

Response.  As part of the permitting process, the Developer will be required to submit water and wastewater 
masterplans, which will quantify the water and wastewater demands and identify infrastructure requirements for 
service.  

12. How will this increased industrial demand affect local water availability and long-term planning?  
Response.  The City maintains a robust water portfolio, with water rights that exceed water demands.  We have a 
“100-year designation of assured water supply” from the Arizona Department of Water Resources, the strongest 
standard for water supply reliability in the nation.  To ensure these supplies remain resilient the City is investing in 
advanced water purification and continues to evaluate and develop alternative supplies.  Additionally, 
developments exceeding 250,000 gallons per day of water demand are required to comply with the City’s large 
water user ordinance.  And developments exceeding 500,000 gallons per day are subject to the large water user 
ordinance’s 30% water conservation and/or recycling requirements.    
 
 Waste Handling & Transportation 

13. The finalized Traffic Impact Analysis contains no information on freight, hazardous materials transport, or 
semi-truck traffic associated with chemical deliveries and waste removal. How many additional truck trips 
are anticipated weekly?  

14. Will there be changes to hazardous waste storage limits or routing of transport vehicles through residential 
areas? Will the City continue relying on voluntary routing preferences?  

Response. Waste storage limits are specified in the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) regulations; 
in general, the more waste generated on a site, the more frequently it must be removed (for example, large 
quantity generators have a 90-day storage limit while small quantity generators have 180-day storage limit). These 
regulations are enforced in Arizona by the Arizona Department of Environmental Quality. The amount of hazardous 
waste disposed of from a facility is also reported to ADEQ and the EPA on a yearly basis 
(https://enviro.epa.gov/envirofacts/rcrainfo/search). EPA and Department of Transportation (DOT) regulate the 
transportation of hazardous waste with the goal of reducing the likelihood of spillage, and if an accident occurs, 
making sure adequate information is available regarding the hazards of the materials in transportation, but they do 
not regulate specific routing.  
 
Community Transparency & Notification 

15. Will the City commit to promptly notifying nearby neighborhoods of any accidental releases, exceedances, 
or operational issues that could affect public health?  

16.  Will residents have access to discharge monitoring reports, pretreatment data, and air emissions reports 
for the facility or will these be marked as trade secrets/confidential? 

Releases to the environment (soil, air, or water) that exceed the threshold quantities for that chemical (amounts 
listed in the EPA consolidated list of lists) are required to be reported to the National Response Center 
(NRC:  https://nrc.uscg.mil/). NRC also coordinates with ADEQ related to reports, ADEQ would be the regulator 
that would first be notified of any release that could affect public health and would provide necessary public 
notifications or work with the facility to ensure the facility makes necessary public notifications 
(https://azdeq.gov/azserc).  TSMC must comply with all federal and state requirements on this issue and 
availability of that information is governed by those laws and agencies.   
 
Sincerely, 
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Racelle Escolar, AICP 
Principal Planner 
Planning and Development Department 
Long Range Planning 
racelle.escolar@phoenix.gov      (602) 534-2864 
 

 
  
From: Amanda McGowan <amanda@stetsonvalleyoa.com>  
Sent: Monday, November 24, 2025 11:01 PM 
To: Adrian G Zambrano <adrian.zambrano@phoenix.gov> 
Subject: Re: TSMC Response- Discharge & Air Pollution Data- Northpark Adrian, Thank you again for your time and for faci litating a c all with Wat er Services regarding community questions about industrial wastewater discharges. I appreci ate the responsive ness and the willi ngness to discuss these issues. During 

Hi Adrian, 

Thank you again for your time and for facilitating a call with Water Services regarding community 
questions about industrial wastewater discharges. I appreciate the responsiveness and the willingness 
to discuss these issues. 

During the call, Ms. Nunez confirmed that the City does not currently require TSMC to test for PFAS 
(“forever chemicals”) in their discharge, despite PFAS being well documented as widely used in 
semiconductor manufacturing.  She also shared that the City believes it cannot require this testing 
because it is not federally mandated and there would be pushback.   

For reference, I am attaching an EPA memorandum (December 2022) that clarifies that states and local 
pretreatment authorities do have the authority under existing Clean Water Act provisions to require PFAS 
monitoring, and that EPA explicitly recommends that POTWs and permit authorities begin such 
monitoring immediately using draft method 1633. EPA’s PFAS Roadmap explicitly identifies the 
semiconductor industry as a sector of concern. 

I requested that Water Services provide written information to share with our community members, but 
was advised that a response may take weeks and could involve both internal review and coordination 
with TSMC. Unfortunately, this would likely occur after the Council’s vote on the proposed rezoning- well 
after it could meaningfully inform decision-making or public feedback. 

Given that this rezoning would bring large-scale industrial uses significantly closer to existing homes and 
Sonoran Preserve land, community members are seeking basic clarity on issues essential to 
understanding potential public health and environmental impacts. The staff report notes the many 
environmental concerns the city has received but does not substantively address them.   

Below are the key questions residents  & our board hope the City can answer so that Council may make a 
fully informed determination. 

Wastewater & PFAS Monitoring 
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1. Will the City require PFAS monitoring for industrial users discharging to the POTW, consistent with 
EPA’s December 2022 guidance encouraging pretreatment authorities to use existing Clean Water 
Act authority to require this testing? 

2. If not, what is the rationale for declining to require PFAS monitoring when EPA guidance permits 
and recommends it? 

3. Will the City require the facility to conduct influent, effluent, and sludge testing to identify PFAS or 
PFAS precursors entering the wastewater system? 

4. If PFAS are detected, what mechanisms or controls are in place to prevent contaminated 
wastewater or biosolids from entering the environment? 

Chemical Inventory & Spill/Accident Risk 

5. Has the City conducted (or will it require) a hazard analysis for the large volumes of hydrofluoric 
acid, nitric acid, sulfuric acid, glycol ethers, diesel, and other hazardous chemicals currently 
stored onsite and anticipated with expansion?   

6. What release modeling radius is used for chemicals such as hydrofluoric acid, and will those 
models be made public? The Center for Environmental Oversight has already stated in writing that 
such analysis is appropriate for a project of this scale. Hydrofluoric acid (HF) is one of the most 
dangerous industrial chemicals in use today. A single semiconductor fab can store multiple 
7,000–8,000 gallon tanks of HF and related chemicals- far more than an average industrial facility. 

7. Will expansion necessitate updated emergency response plans, and will those plans be 
coordinated with local fire agencies and accessible to residents? 

Air Quality & Emissions 

8. Will the City require cumulative air-quality modeling for the expanded operations, given the 
number of thermal oxidizers, diesel generators, cooling towers, and VOC-containing storage 
tanks? 

9. How will the City ensure that increased VOCs, NOx, SO₂, particulate matter, and other 
emissions do not negatively impact nearby neighborhoods- particularly in a region already facing 
significant air-quality challenges? 

10. What perimeter or ambient monitoring (continuous or periodic) will be required to ensure 
compliance and detect offsite impacts? 

Water Supply & Usage 

11. A city employee indicated an estimated discharge of approximately 4 million gallons per day from 
existing operations. What is the projected increase in water usage and wastewater 
discharge associated with the expansion? 

12. How will this increased industrial demand affect local water availability and long-term planning?  

Waste Handling & Transportation 
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13. The finalized Traffic Impact Analysis contains no information on freight, hazardous materials 
transport, or semi-truck traffic associated with chemical deliveries and waste removal. How many 
additional truck trips are anticipated weekly? 

14. Will there be changes to hazardous waste storage limits or routing of transport vehicles through 
residential areas? Will the City continue relying on voluntary routing preferences? 

Community Transparency & Notification 

15. Will the City commit to promptly notifying nearby neighborhoods of any accidental releases, 
exceedances, or operational issues that could affect public health? 

16. Will residents have access to discharge monitoring reports, pretreatment data, and air emissions 
reports for the facility or will these be marked as trade secrets/confidential?  

Our community continues to express deep concern that the proposed rezoning represents rapid, large-
scale industrial growth without a sufficient understanding of potential impacts, especially given the 
proximity to homes and to Sonoran Preserve land. We understand that certain operational details may 
traditionally arise later in the process; however, these questions go directly to the compatibility of the 
proposed land use- and therefore are essential for Council to understand before voting.  

Thank you again for engaging on this issue. I hope the City can provide clarity on these questions so that 
both Council and the community can fully understand the implications of this rezoning proposal for our 
community. 

Sincerely, 

  
-Amanda McGowan  
SVOA Board President 
  

From: Adrian G Zambrano <adrian.zambrano@phoenix.gov> 
Sent: Thursday, November 20, 2025 10:44 AM 
To: Amanda McGowan <amanda@stetsonvalleyoa.com> 
Subject: RE: TSMC Response- Discharge & Air Pollution Data- Northpark 

  

HI Amanda, 

  

The Water Services Department is reaching out to you regarding the discharge permit. 

  

For air emissions, that would likely be with Maricopa County. 
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Best regards, 

  

 

Adrian Zambrano (he/him/his) 

Planner II - Village Planner 

Phone: 602-534-6057 

E-mail: adrian.zambrano@phoenix.gov 
City of Phoenix 

► Planning & Development Department 

Planning Division, Long Range Planning 

200 West Washington Street, 3rd Floor 

Phoenix, AZ 85003 
  

Mission: Planning, Development and Preservation for a Better Phoenix 

   

From: Amanda McGowan <amanda@stetsonvalleyoa.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, November 19, 2025 4:59 PM 
To: Adrian G Zambrano <adrian.zambrano@phoenix.gov> 
Subject: TSMC Response- Discharge & Air Pollution Data- Northpark 

  
Hi Adrian, TSMC referred us back you (and the c ounty) with regard to the foll owing : "With reg ards to your first inquiry re water discharge and air emissions – we would point you to the City of Phoenix and Maricopa County. W e hold permits 

Hi Adrian,  

TSMC referred us back you (and the county) with regard to the following:  

  

"With regards to your first inquiry re water discharge and air emissions – we would point you to the City of 
Phoenix and Maricopa County. We hold permits with the City and the County which subject us to strict limits 
regarding discharge and emissions – and you can request this information from them as part of a public records 
request process." 

  

I thought you had said they do not hold permits with the city regarding environmental issues? Does the city 
have data on their air emissions or water discharge contents? I am happy to put in a records request as they 
suggested to us, if needed. Thank you,  
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-Amanda McGowan  

SVOA Board President 

  

After Hours Emergency: 1.800.274.3165 

StetsonValleyOA.com [stetsonvalleyoa.com]  
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From: Racelle Escolar
Sent: Wednesday, December 17, 2025 1:06 PM
To: 'Amanda McGowan'
Cc: Tricia Gomes; Sarah Stockham; Adrian G Zambrano
Subject: RE: Northpark Infrastructure Funding Questions

Importance: High

Hi Amanda, 

Please see response to this email below: 

I’d like to clarify that neither the 51st Avenue gravity sewer project nor the Happy Valley Road widening project 
were part of the original $205 million infrastructure investment outlined in the Development Agreement with 
TSMC. 

Regarding the 51st Avenue sewer project: 
 It is not a direct result of TSMC’s presence.
 However, because TSMC was the first entity to develop in the Biscuit Flat area it is benefitting from that

installation.
 The 51st Avenue sewer installation project was part of the Water Departments 5-year Capital Improvement

Program because it is a larger infrastructure improvement needed to support any new development within
Biscuit Flats area.

As for the Happy Valley Road widening: 
 This project has been included in the City’s Capital Improvement Program (CIP) for many years.
 Its timing is coincidental and advantageous for the Biscuit Flat developments.
 Approximately 35% of the funding for Happy Valley road was provided by the Arizona Legislature in 2023,

the rest of the funding was a mix regional and local funding.

Please let me know if you need additional details or supporting documentation. 

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
Sent: Saturday, December 6, 2025 3:11 PM 
Subject: Northpark Infrastructure Funding Questions 
 
Hi Adrian/Racell e, I am writing ag ain to request clarifi cati on on whether the gravity sewer installed al ong 51st Avenue , through the center of Stetson Valley ov er the past year, was part of the original $205 milli on infr astructure commitment  
ZjQcmQR YFpfptBannerStart  

 

CAUTION: This email originated outside of the City of Phoenix.  

Do not click links or open attachments unless you know the sender and were expecting this email.  

    Report Suspicious     
 

ZjQcmQR YFpfptBanner End 

Hi Adrian/Racelle, 

I am writing again to request clarification on whether the gravity sewer installed along 51st Avenue, 
through the center of Stetson Valley over the past year, was part of the original $205 million 
infrastructure commitment of taxpayer funds made in support of TSMC, or whether this project was 
undertaken above and beyond that amount. 

Additionally, now that the Traffic Impact Analysis Study has been accepted, it indicates that the 
taxpayer-funded widening of Happy Valley Road- which already underway- is also necessary to 
accommodate the proposed NorthPark development. Please clarify whether this roadway project is 
included within the same $205 million infrastructure commitment to TSMC, or if it represents additional 
public expenditures beyond that figure. 

Given the scale of these investments, taxpayers deserve clear and complete information regarding how 
public funds are being allocated to support private companies and whether infrastructure projects are 
directly tied to previously approved commitments or to projects before land rezoning or land sales have 
occurred.  

For context, when I spoke with Ms. Nunez from the City of Phoenix, she indicated that she believed the 
sewer project was “more for TSMC than anything else", as the current infrastructure could not 
adequately handle their discharge. This makes it even more important to understand how these projects 
are being categorized and funded. 

I appreciate your time and your commitment to transparency in the spending of taxpayer dollars- we 
have been awaiting answers to these questions for weeks. I also respectfully request that the responses 
to these questions be included in the NorthPark public case file so they are accessible to the 
community. 

Thank you for your attention to this matter, and we look forward to your response. 

Sincerely, 

-Amanda McGowan  
SVOA Board President 
 https://www.stetsonvalleyoa.com/say-no-to-northpark/ [stetsonvalleyoa.com] 
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From: Racelle Escolar
Sent: Wednesday, December 17, 2025 11:54 AM
To: Jen Ross
Cc: Sarah Stockham; Adrian G Zambrano
Subject: RE: TSMC/North Park inquiry - Stetson Valley

Hi Jen, 

Sorry for the delay and thank you for reaching out and sharing your concerns. 

Stetson Valley Parkway was always planned and designed to be three lanes in each direction since the 
construction of the Stetson Valley Community.  However, Stetson Valley Parkway is currently built with two lanes 
in each direction and a wide median to allow for future expansion, if needed. The Street Transportation 
Department will evaluate future lane needs based on traffic counts, which are collected through traffic studies 
submitted with specific development proposals. Any changes will be driven by actual traffic demand and reviewed 
as new developments are proposed. 

With that said, concerns regarding the school crossing have been raised and studies provided by the developer 
recommend improvements for a safer crossing.  In terms, of the construction timeline for development of the 
homes, the homebuilder anticipates that would start approximately 3-4 years if the request is approved by City 
Council.  Please let me know if you have any additional questions. 

Sincerely, 

Racelle Escolar, AICP 
Principal Planner 
Planning and Development Department 
Long Range Planning 
racelle.escolar@phoenix.gov      (602) 534-2864

From: Jen Ross <jenbird2014@gmail.com>  
Sent: Friday, December 12, 2025 9:46 AM 
Subject: TSMC/North Park inquiry - Stetson Valley 
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Hello - happy Friday! 
 
I'm curious what the plans are for the 6 lanes on Stetson Valley Parkway.  Have you guys decided yet if it 
will remain at 4? 
I'm really concerned about the kids who need to cross to go to Inspiration Mountain School. 
 
Also, what is the timeframe for when the homes and roads will be built?  I just need a ballpark. 2 months? 
1 year? 5 years?  We're trying to figure out when to sell our home.  Let me know if any of you are 
interested and we'll be happy to sell this month.  Stetson Valley is a great neighborhood currently.   
 
I won't bother getting into all of the other issues because I know you have plenty of other residents 
emailing about that.  ha! 
 
Thanks for any insight you're able to provide. 
 
Enjoy your weekend! 
Jen 
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